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Dear Mr Law, 

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED) 

SECTION 73 - MINOR MATERIAL AMENDMENT – VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 7 AND 8 OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION REF. PA/2019/1595 – DECOMMISSIONING AND RESTORATION OF HAUL ROAD 

I write on behalf of Keadby Developments Limited (‘KDL’), a subsidiary of SSE plc (‘the Applicant’), to 
submit a planning application (the ‘Application’) under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) for a minor material amendment (‘MMA’) to Planning Permission Ref. 
PA/2019/1595 (the ‘Planning Permission’) dated 15 November 2020.      

The Planning Permission allowed for the construction of a temporary haul road to accommodate 
Abnormal Indivisible Loads (‘AILs’), including two ditch crossings (the ‘Temporary Haul Road’) on land 
east of the existing Keadby Power Station (Keadby 1), Keadby, DN17 3EF (the ‘Site’) in connection with 
the construction of the Keadby 2 Power Station Project (‘Keadby 2’).  The Application seeks to vary 
Conditions 7 and 8 of the Planning Permission, which relate to the removal of the Temporary Haul 
Road and restoration of the Site. 

The Application comprises: 

• Application Forms and Certificates;

• Cover Letter (this document);

• Site Location Plan; and

• Planning Permission Ref. PA/2019/1595 (dated 15 November 2020).

Background to the Application 

The Temporary Haul Road was required to facilitate the delivery of circa 80 Abnormal Indivisible Loads 
(‘AILs’) to the Keadby 2 construction site from the nearby Railway Wharf on the River Trent.  The use 
of the Railway Wharf and provision of the Temporary Haul Road has significantly reduced the impact 
of the Keadby 2 construction work on to the local road network, removing the need for AILs to be 
transported by road from the nearest port (i.e. Immingham), which would have caused disruption to 
other road users.  National planning policy also supports the use of waterborne transport as a means 
of reducing road traffic and emissions.   

KDL is now advancing proposals for a further Combined Cycle Gas Turbine (‘CCGT’) power station on 
land to the north-west of Keadby 1.  The proposals are known as the ‘Keadby 3 Low Carbon Gas Power 
Station’.  Carbon dioxide from the CCGT Power Station will be captured and then transported via a 
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pipeline, forming part of the Zero Carbon Humber Project, for secure storage beneath the North Sea.  
An application for development consent is to be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in late Quarter 
1/early Quarter 2 2021 and it is envisaged that consent would be granted some time in Quarter 3 2022.  
It is proposed that during the Keadby 3 construction works, which could commence in late 2022/early 
2023, use is once again made of the Temporary Haul Road to facilitate the movement of AILs from the 
Railway Wharf to the construction site.  KDL is therefore applying to vary Conditions 7 and 8 of the 
Planning Permission so as to allow for the Temporary Haul Road to be retained for a longer period in 
order that it can be used during the construction of Keadby 3.   

The Site and Existing Temporary Haul Road 

The Site boundary for the Temporary Haul Road Planning Permission is shown edged red in Figure 1 
below.  The first section of the route from the Railway Wharf passes through a PD Ports Storage Yard 
to the west of the B1392.  No works were required in this area, which comprises existing hardstanding.  
The remainder of the route passes through a field that is within the control of the Applicant and it is 
within this area (shaded yellow in Figure 1) that the Temporary Haul Road was constructed.   

Figure 1: Temporary Haul Road Planning Permission Redline Boundary 

The Temporary Road comprises of compacted granular stone laid on top of a geotextile permeable 
membrane.  The Temporary Haul Road passes over drainage ditches on the eastern and western 
boundaries of the field on steel bridges held in place by concrete support foundations, fitted into the 
ditch banks.  The granular stone, membrane and ditch crossings would be removed when no longer 
required and the field restored in accordance with details approved by the Local Planning Authority 
(‘LPA’). 
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The Variation of Conditions 7 and 8 

As confirmed above, it is proposed that the Temporary Haul Road is retained so that it can be used 
during the during the Keadby 3 construction works, which could commence in late 2022/early 2023.  
The Temporary Haul Road would be removed at the end of the construction period, which would be 
of similar duration to that for Keadby 2, and the Site restored in accordance with details approved by 
the LPA.  Condition 7 of the Planning Permission requires the Temporary Haul Road to be removed 
and the Site restored in accordance with an approved scheme (secured by Condition 8) within three 
months of the completion of Keadby 2.  It is currently envisaged that construction work on Keadby 2 
will be completed in mid-2021, meaning that the Temporary Haul Road would need to be removed 
before the end of this year.   

While it is proposed that the application for development consent will include the temporary haul 
route from the Railway Wharf to the Keadby 3 site, it is necessary for Conditions 7 and 8 to be varied 
so that the Temporary Haul Road can be retain in-situ until Quarter 3/Quarter 4 2022, at which point 
it is envisaged that a Development Consent Order would have been granted for Keadby 3, which would 
in effect replace the Planning Permission.  It is therefore proposed that Conditions 7 and 8 are 
amended to as follows: 

Amended Condition 7 

“Unless a new planning permission or consent has been granted to permit the retention of the 
temporary haul road on a further temporary basis within 2 years from completion of the Keadby 2 
Power Station Project, the temporary haul road, road bridges and associated infrastructure shall be 
excavated, dismantled and removed from the site. The developer shall notify the local planning 
authority in writing no later than 28 days following completion of the construction of Keadby 2 Power 
Station. The site shall subsequently be restored in accordance with the approved restoration scheme 
no later than three months following the removal of the works from the sitecompletion of the Keadby 
2 power station.” 

Amended Condition 8 

“No later than within 182 months following of completion of the construction of the Keadby 2 Power 
Station Project temporary haul road hereby approved a scheme for the removal of the temporary haul 
road, road bridges and associated infrastructure decommissioning of the haul road and restoration of 
the site, including the incorporation of biodiversity enhancements and a timetable for implementation, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the localtion planning authority. The Such an approved 
scheme shall thereafter be implemented as approved, in accordance with the timescales as set out in 
condition 7 of this planning permission. except for where a new planning permission or consent has 
been granted to permit the retention of the temporary haul road in which case the removal of the 
temporary haul road shall be in accordance with the requirements of the new planning permission or 
consent.” 

The retention of the Temporary Haul Road for use in connection with the construction of Keadby 3 
would not only have transport sustainability benefits, but also represents a more sustainable and cost-
effective approach than would be the case if it had to be removed later this year in line with Condition 
7 as currently worded, only to have to be reconstructed at a later date.  
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I look forward to the LPA confirming receipt and validation of the Application.  The application fee of 
£234.00 has been settled electronically via the Planning Portal. 

Yours sincerely, 

Enc. 

Application Forms and certificates 
Site Location Plan  
Planning Permission – PA/2019/1595 

Rob Booth MRTPI 
Associate
DWD
Rob.Booth@dwdllp.com
020 7489 4830
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